Data from the 1910 Land Valuation Survey for the parish of South Littleton



Prepared by Ruth Webb, Caroline Norcott, Gillian Ellis and Alan Wadsworth

Contents

Introduction	2
1. The Valuation Office Survey of 1910	
2. The parish of South Littleton in 1910	3
3. Land and property in 1910 in the parish of South Littleton	4
Appendix 1. Transcribed data from the Valuation Summary for the parish of South Littleton	5
Appendix 2. Index of Owners	24
Appendix 3. Index of Occupiers	25
Appendix 4. Index of Places	27
Appendix 5. References to other Land Valuation resources for South Littleton	28
Appendix 6. Data standardisations made for the parish of South Littleton.	29

WAAS: BA16645/22/3 Version 2.0

Front cover image: South Littleton Manor, South Littleton in August 2020 https://www.geograph.org.uk/photo/6584132 [accessed 18 November 2024] © Philip Halling and licensed for reuse under creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/2.0.

Introduction

The Valuation Office Survey of 1910 resulted in the creation of a snapshot of land across the county of Worcestershire, in common with other counties in England. The associated Valuation Summary books are to be found at the Hive in Worcester: these books are of a large format, measuring 43cm by 34cm, cloth-bound with leather corners and the name of the Income Tax Parish (ITP) written on the spine. An ITP may cover just a single civil parish in the county, whilst some ITPs covered two or more parishes: for example, the ITP of Church Lench only contains records for the civil parish of Church Lench, whilst that of Abbots Lench covers the civil parishes of Fladbury, Hill & Moor, Throckmorton and Wyre Piddle, as well as Abbots Lench itself. In some cases, two or more ITPs can be found in the same Valuation Summary book: for example, Conderton and Overbury. The basic unit of valuation was a piece of land in separate occupation, although the application of this principle was not always straightforward. The number of valuation assessments in each ITP ranges across the county from 1 (Crutch) to 7,171 (Kidderminster Borough).

This series of booklets provides a transcription of the Valuation Summary books for each civil parish in the county of Worcestershire, along with a brief analysis of the transcribed data.

1. The Valuation Office Survey of 1910

The valuation of land in 1910 was initiated by the Finance (1909-1910) Act (10 Edw. VII, c.8 section 26(1)) which provided for the levy and collection of a duty on the increment value of all land in the United Kingdom. The main object of the Act was to tax that part of the capital appreciation of real property which was attributable to the site itself, excluding any benefit arising from crops, buildings or improvements paid for by the owners. In this way, private owners were required to pay part of the increase in the site value of their land which had resulted from the expenditure of public money on communal developments such as roads or public services.

Increment value duty was based on the difference between the amount of two valuations. The first was the site value as at 30 April 1909, as determined by the Valuation Survey, which constituted the 'datum line' for these purposes: a second site valuation was to be taken on the occasion of any subsequent sale or grant of a lease, transfer of interest in a piece of land, or the subsequent death of a land owner, in order to determine any potential payment of increment value duty. This second assessment formed part of the on-going role of the Valuation Office, until this duty was repealed by the 1920 Finance Act (10 and 11 Geo. V, c.18). Although this legislation was only in place for around ten years, it has left behind a comprehensive record of land in every county enabling an understanding of the ownership, occupation, extent and value of land. The data collected during the survey for the county of Worcestershire, which has been retained, is contained in four different sets:

- The Valuation Summary books (sometimes referred to as the Lloyd George Domesday books): these are held at the Hive in Worcester (WAAS: BA8585/1 series);
- Forms 37 Land: these contain the provisional valuations, and are also held at the Hive in Worcester (WAAS: 8585/2-64 series);
- Two series of annotated Ordnance Survey maps: the Field Maps (used in the field during survey), some of which are now held at the Hive in Worcester; the Record Maps (originally

Parish: South Littleton 2 December 2024

-

¹ See Brian Short, *Land and Society in Edwardian Britain* (Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, 1997), pp 131-132.

kept in the Valuation Record office) now held at the National Archives at Kew (TNA: IR129 series);

• The Field Books which contain a complete record of each valuation: again, these are held at the National Archives at Kew (TNA: IR58 series).

With regard to the Valuation Summary books, the first nine columns were compiled from the Rate Book for the parish and all of the books contain this information. Subsequent columns (10-40) were supposed to be completed by the staff of the District Valuation Offices after the initial valuation was complete: however, this was not carried out in a consistent fashion, and indeed, anyone interested in the mechanics and outcome of an individual valuation would be better served by the details contained in the Field Books.

This series of booklets provides a transcription of the first nine columns in that these record the ownership, occupation, extent, and basic valuation of each assessment. After a brief introduction to the parish, an analysis of the data will be presented examining the names of the major landowners and the extent of their property in the parish, along with an analysis of the main farms in the parish. Indexes of owners, occupiers and places appear in subsequent appendices and a final appendix will direct the reader to the appropriate references for the associated Forms 37, Record Maps and Field Books for the parish covered by the booklet.

This booklet presents the data for the civil parish of South Littleton: it has been taken from the summary book for the Income Tax Parish of Cleeve Prior which covers the civil parishes of Cleeve Prior, North & Middle Littleton, South Littleton and Offenham.²

2. The parish of South Littleton in 1910

The parish is located between 3 and 4 miles north-east of Evesham on a geology described as 'Wilmcote Limestone Formation' and 'Blue Lias Formation and Charmouth Mudstone Formation', extending to 813 acres. The resulting soils are primarily lime-rich, loamy and clayey soils with impeded drainage.³

When the census was carried out in 1911, the population of South Littleton was 434 (228 males and 206 females): of the 110 properties recorded in the census, 99 were inhabited, three were uninhabited, one was classed as a 'building' and seven were classed as a 'building not used as dwelling'.⁴

From an agricultural viewpoint in the same year, the total cultivated area of the parish was 1,023¼ acres, of which 431 were arable, and 592¼ acres (58% of the total) were grassland, including 59½ acres of orchards. Of the 46 agricultural holdings in the parish, 43 were tenanted properties covering 834 acres (82% of the total). The main arable crops were wheat, beans, oats, and peas, whilst the orchards were growing mainly apples and plums. With more pasture land than arable, 130 cattle and 472 sheep were kept. ⁵

Parish: South Littleton 3 December 2024

² WAAS: BA 8585/1/22, Inland Revenue. Valuation Summary book for the parish of Cleeve Prior, North & Middle Littleton, South Littleton, Offenham, 1909-10.

³ Kelly's Directory 1912, p. 172. British Geological Survey, *Geology Viewer app – South Littleton*, *Worcestershire* [accessed 6 July 2024]; British Geological Survey, *UK Soil Observatory (UKSO) app*, *Soilscapes for England and Wales – South Littleton*, *Worcestershire* [accessed 6 July 2024].

⁴ TNA: RG78/1083. 1911 Census Enumerator's Summary Books. Worcestershire. Evesham. Registration Sub-District: Broadway, including Civil Parish, Township or Place: South Littleton.

⁵ TNA: MAF68/2489, Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food and predecessors: Statistics Divisions: Parish Summaries of Agricultural Returns. Worcestershire, 1911. Main acreages of arable as follows: Wheat, 101; Beans, 86; Oats, 31½; Peas, 23¼. Orchard acreages: Apples, 31¾; Plums, 13¾; Other kinds, 14.

3. Land and property in 1910 in the parish of South Littleton

In preparing the data for analysis, a series of standardisations have been made: see Appendix 6 for full details.

Of the 323 assessments with owners recorded in the Valuation Summary, 86 were owned by the Rev. F. G. E. Ashworth. The Rev. Francis Gerald Edwardes Ashworth had held the living of a vicarage at South Littleton (with North Littleton annexed), in the gift of Christ Church College, Oxford, since 1902.⁶ As well as Lady Northwick and Lieut. Col. R. Bourne, the other major landowners were institutional organisations (see Table 1), whilst Bourne held the great acreage as shown in Table 2.

Table 1: Number of assessments by landowner

Name	No. of assessments
Rev. F. G. E. Ashworth	86
Worcestershire County Council	30
Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	29
Bidford Cooperative Society	24
Lady Northwick	18
Christ Church College	16
42 others with 10 or less assessments	120
Not stated	1
TOTAL	324

Table 2 shows the acreage of land in the parish by major landowner, determined by summing the entries in the Valuation Summary, and those assessments with more than 25 acres of land are listed in Table 3.

Table 2: Acreage of land by major landowner

Name	A	Acreage	e
	a	r	p
Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	218	2	14
Matthew H. Munyard	142	3	12
Lady Northwick	126	1	12
Rev. F. G. E. Ashworth	77	1	8
Christ Church College	75	0	25
Worcestershire County Council	48	1	33
3 others with between 10 and 25 acres each	42	2	39
37 others with less than 10 acres each	69	0	29
TOTAL	800	2	12

Table 3: Assessments in excess of 25 acres

Occupier	Situation	1	Acreage	
		a	r	p
Matthew H. Munyard	Shinehill Farm	142	3	12
John Morris	Manor Farm	110	3	4
Harry Dudfield	Norval Farm	93	3	0
William Careless	New Barn	55	2	1
Bellwood Ashwin	Pastures Farm	46	3	25
Charles Emms	Hyde Farm	28	0	0

⁶ Kelly's Directory 1912, p. 172.

-

Appendix 1. Transcribed data from the Valuation Summary for the parish of South Littleton.

NOTES:

- 1. This data has been transcribed as presented in the Valuation Summary without any standardisation of punctuation, abbreviation &c. However, all data presented as superscripts has been included as normal text in this transcription.
- 2. Many of the assessment numbers were not given as complete numbers in the Valuation Summary: for example, between 580 and 590, the numbers are written as 580, 1, 2, 3, ... 9, 590. In order to provide an accurate cross-reference between the data in this appendix, and that in Appendices 2, 3 and 4, the assessment numbers have been completed in full in the table below.

							_~~	imate xtent	ed	Gros v	s ann alue	ual	Rate	able va	alue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	æ	S	d
572	1	Percy Wheeler	Percy Wheeler South Littleton	House		South Littleton			7	7	0	0	5	12	6
573		Percy Wheeler	Percy Wheeler South Littleton	Orchard		Langton's		2	20	4	0	0	3	16	0
574	2	Levi Read	Percy Wheeler South Littleton	Cottage		South Littleton				5	0	0	4	0	0
575		Charles Rose	Jane Vickridge Haselor, Nr. Alcester	Cottage		South Littleton			16	4	0	0	3	5	0
576		John Witts	Benjm Wheeler Middle Littleton Evesham	Cottage		South Littleton		1	10	6	0	0	4	15	0
577		Frederick Harrison	Benjm Wheeler Middle Littleton Evesham	Cottage		South Littleton			10	4	0	0	3	5	0
578		Harry Taylor	Benjm Wheeler Middle Littleton Evesham	Cottage		South Littleton			10	4	0	0	3	5	0
579		Fanny Harrison	Benjm Wheeler Middle Littleton Evesham	Cottage		South Littleton			10	4	0	0	3	5	0
580	3	Geo: H. Rose	Robt. Emms senr Post Office, South Littleton	Cottage		South Littleton			10	5	0	0	4	0	0
581		William Rose	Robt. Emms senr Post Office, South Littleton	Cottage		South Littleton			10	3	5	0	2	12	6
582		Robt. Emms senr.	Robt. Emms senr Post Office, South Littleton	Cottage		Post Office			21	6	0	0	4	15	0

								imate xtent		Gros v	s ann alue	ual	Rate	able va	alue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	S	d
583	4	Algernon Howley	Frank Harris Hanover Street Bham	Cottage		Shinehill Lane				6	0	0	4	15	0
584		Ralph Harris junr	Frank Harris Hanover Street Bham	Buildings		Shinehill Lane				2	0	0	1	14	0
585		Ralph Harris junr	Frank Harris Hanover Street Bham	Agr. Land		Shinehill Lane	3	1	20	18	0	0	17	2	0
586		Ralph Harris junr	Ralph Harris senr Offenham	Agr. Land		Flax Gd	3	2	0	6	0	0	5	14	0
587	5	Mary A. Sheppard	Mary A. Sheppard South Littleton	Cottage		South Littleton			20	4	15	0	3	17	6
588		Henry Cook	Mary A. Sheppard South Littleton	Cottage		South Littleton			20	4	15	0	3	17	6
589		Emma Gould	Mary A. Sheppard South Littleton	Cottage		South Littleton			20	4	15	0	3	17	6
590		Harry Mumford	Mary A. Sheppard South Littleton	Cottage		South Littleton			20	4	15	0	3	17	6
591		Jim Rose	Mary A. Sheppard South Littleton	Cottage		South Littleton			20	4	15	0	3	17	6
592	5	George Emms	Mary A. Sheppard	Orchard		South Littleton		2	6	6	0	0	5	14	0
593		George Mumford	Mary A. Sheppard	Agr. Land		Shinehill Lane	2	0	13	6	0	0	5	14	0
594	6	George Emms	Mary A. Sheppard	Ho: & Garden		Sth Littleton		1	3	12	0	0	10	5	0
595	7	Henry Randall	Sarah & Edith Wheeler c/o Mr. Clegg, Bibsworth House Broadway Evesham	Ho: & Garden		Sth Littleton		1	39	10	0	0	8	10	0
596	8	Robt. H. Careless	Sladden & Collier Ltd The Brewery, Evesham	House & Premises		King Edward VII Inn				24	0	0	20	8	0
597	9	Bellwood Ashwin	Christ Ch. College Castle, Field & Castle	House		Pastures Farm				20	0	0	17	0	0
598		Bellwood Ashwin	Christ Ch. College Castle, Field & Castle	Buildings		Pastures Farm				15	0	0	12	15	0

								imate xtent		Gros	s ann	ual	Rate	able va	ılue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	S	d
599		Bellwood Ashwin	Christ Ch. College Castle, Field & Castle	Agr. Land		Pastures Farm	46	3	25	25	17	0	24	12	0
600		Bellwood Ashwin	Christ Ch. College Castle, Field & Castle	S. Rights		Pastures Farm				1	3	0	1	2	0
601		James Neville	Christ Ch. College Castle, Field & Castle	Cottage		Pastures Farm				4	0	0	3	5	0
602		Henry Coldicott	Christ Ch. College Castle, Field & Castle	Cottage		Pastures Farm				4	0	0	3	5	0
603	10	Herbert Chown	Herbert Chown South House, South Littleton	House & Garden		South House		2	4	30	0	0	25	10	0
604	11	Herbert Chown	Herbert Chown South House, South Littleton	Orchard		South House	2	2	24	18	0	0	17	2	0
605	12	Robt. H. Careless	R. Walton Smith Beauchamp Court, Alcester	Orchard		Dovehouse Close	5	2	27	32	0	0	30	8	0
606		Robt. H. Careless	R. Walton Smith Beauchamp Court, Alcester	Buildings		Dovehouse Close				4	0	0	3	7	6
607	13	Harry Dudfield	Lady Northwick	House		Norval Farm				8	0	0	6	15	0
608		Harry Dudfield	Lady Northwick	Buildings		Norval Farm				12	0	0	10	5	0
609		Harry Dudfield	Lady Northwick	Agr. Land		Norval Farm	93	3	0	27	16	0	26	8	0
610		Harry Dudfield	Lady Northwick	S. Rights		Norval Farm				1	19	0	1	17	0
611		Void	Lady Northwick	Cottage		Norval Farm				4	0	0	3	5	0
612	14	William Careless	Wm. B. Driver Woodmancote Manor Cirencester	House & Garden		South Littleton		3	19	17	0	0	14	10	0
613		William Careless	Wm. B. Driver Woodmancote Manor Cirencester	Bottom Yd & Buildings		South Littleton		1	11	2	0	0	1	14	0
614		William Careless	United Bank Ltd Leamington	Top Yd & Buildings		South Littleton		2	8	6	0	0	5	2	0

								imate xtent		Gros	s ann alue	ual	Rate	able va	alue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	s	d
615		William Careless	United Bank Ltd Leamington	Orchard		Bowery	1	0	26	4	0	0	3	16	0
616		William Careless	Wm B. Driver	Orchard		Home Orchard	2	1	13	16	0	0	15	4	0
617		William Careless	William Careless South Littleton	Orchard		Brown's Orchard	1	3	2	12	0	0	11	8	0
618		William Careless	United Bank Ltd	Orchard		Abel's Orchard		2	34	5	0	0	4	15	0
619		William Careless	United Bank Ltd	Pasture		Goodwins	8	1	4	20	0	0	19	0	0
620		William Mumford	William Careless	Cottage		Sth Littleton			26	4	0	0	3	5	0
621	15	Thomas Bubb	Thomas Bubb South Littleton	Agr. Land		Crow Croft	9	1	33	19	0	0	18	0	0
622	16	Solomon Mumford	Solomon Mumford South Littleton	Cottage		Sth Littleton			20	3	10	0	2	15	0
623	17	George Norledge	Charles Emms	Cottage		Sth Littleton				5	0	0	4	0	0
624		Rebecca Jones	Charles Emms	Cottage		Sth Littleton				3	0	0	2	7	6
625		Solomon Salisbury	Charles Emms	Blacksmiths Shop		Sth Littleton				3	0	0	2	10	0
626 ⁷	18	Walter J. Emms	Walter J. Emms South Littleton	House &		Sth Littleton			28	9	0	0	7	12	6
627		Walter J. Emms	Walter J. Emms South Littleton	Orchard		Sth Littleton		1	2	5	0	0	4	15	0
628		David Hobbins	Walter J. Emms South Littleton	Cottage		Sth Littleton				5	0	0	4	0	0
629		William Norledge	Walter J. Emms South Littleton	Cottage		Sth Littleton				5	0	0	4	0	0
630		James Knight	Walter J. Emms South Littleton	Cottage		Sth Littleton				5	0	0	4	0	0
631	19	Robert R. Smith	Thomas Careless Glencoe South Littleton	Cottage		Sth Littleton			8	7	0	0	5	12	6

⁷ This entry and the following entry were linked by a curly bracket.

No. of No. of		of Occupier						imate xtent		Gros	s ann alue	ual	Rate	able va	alue
assessment Poo	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	S	d
632		Major Gibbs	Thomas Careless Glencoe South Littleton	Cottage		Sth Littleton			15	4	10	0	3	12	6
633		John Rose junr	Thomas Careless Glencoe South Littleton	Cottage		Sth Littleton			15	5	0	0	4	0	0
634		Thomas Careless	Thomas Careless Glencoe South Littleton	House		Glencoe			32	12	0	0	10	5	0
635	20	Wilson D. Allchurch	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		New Piece	1	0	0	2	15	0	2	12	6
636	21	Percival W. Holmes	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		New Piece	1	0	0	2	15	0	2	12	6
637	22	Silas Elick Jelfs	Silas Elick Jelfs Bretforton, Honeybourne S. O. Worshire	Land (Small Holdings)		New Piece	1	0	0	2	15	0	2	12	6
638	23	John Cook	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		New Piece	1	0	0	2	15	0	2	12	6
639	24	Fredk. Cook	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		New Piece	1	0	0	2	15	0	2	12	6
640		Fredk. Cook	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		New Piece	1	1	10	3	12	0	3	8	6
641	25	Fredk. Bubb	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		New Piece	1	0	24	3	3	0	3	0	0
642	26	Owen Cook	Worcester County Council	Land (Smalll Holdings)		The Hill	3	0	0	9	7	6	8	18	0
643	27	Harry Edwards	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		The Hill	1	0	0	3	2	6	3	0	0
644		Harry Edwards	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		The Hill	1	0	0	3	2	6	2	17	0
645	28	Hubert A. Kilby	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		The Hill	1	0	0	3	2	6	2	17	0
646	29	Geo. H. Rose	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		The Hill	1	1	14	4	0	0	3	16	0

								imate xtent		Gros	s ann alue	ual	Rate	able va	alue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	S	d
647	30	Martin Stainforth	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		The Hill	6	0	0	18	15	0	17	17	0
648	31	George Shammon	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		The HIII	3	0	0	9	7	6	8	18	0
649	32	Frank Allchurch	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		The Hill	3	0	0	9	7	6	8	18	0
650	33	George H. Emms	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		The Hill	1	0	0	3	2	6	3	0	0
651	34	Wilson D. Allchurch	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		The Hill	1	0	0	3	2	6	3	0	0
652	35	Geo. H. Emms	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		The Hill	1	0	0	3	2	6	3	0	0
653		Geo. H. Emms	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		The Hill		3	33	2	17	0	2	15	0
654	36	Geo. Shammon	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		Blackpool	2	0	0	5	10	0	5	5	0
655	37	Francis Read	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		Blackpool	1	0	0	2	15	0	2	13	0
656		Francis Read	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		Blackpool	1	0	0	2	13	6	2	11	0
657		Francis Read	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		Blackpool	1	0	0	2	13	6	2	11	0
658		Francis Read	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		Blackpool	1	0	0	2	13	6	2	11	0
659	38	Geo. H. Emms	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		Blackpool	1	1	21	3	13	6	3	10	0
660	39	Geo. Shammon	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		Blackpool	2	0	0	5	10	0	5	5	0
661	40	Francis Read	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		Blackpool	2	0	0	5	8	6	5	3	6
662	41	Walter J. Emms	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		Blackpool	1	0	0	2	13	6	2	11	0

								imate xtent		Gros	s ann alue	ual	Rate	able va	alue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	S	d
663		Walter J. Emms	Worcester County Council	Land (Small Holdings)		Blackpool	1	0	26	3	2	0	2	19	0
664	42	John Rose	Bidford Coopr. Society Bidford on Avon S. O. Warshire	Cottage		Sth Littleton				5	0	0	4	0	0
665		Jane Norledge	Bidford Coopr. Society Bidford on Avon S. O. Warshire	Cottage		Sth Littleton				5	0	0	4	0	0
666		Frederick Bubb	Bidford Coopr. Society Bidford on Avon S. O. Warshire	Cottage		Sth Littleton				5	0	0	4	0	0
667		Jane Norledge	Bidford Coopr. Society Bidford on Avon S. O. Warshire	Orchard		Sth Littleton		2	24	5	5	0	5	0	0
668		Bidford Coopr. Society	Bidford Coopr. Society Bidford on Avon S. O. Warshire	Shop & Warehouse		Sth Littleton				10	0	0	8	10	0
669	43	William D. Turley	Christ Ch. College Agent R. Webb Land Agent Evesham	House		Police Station			10	10	0	0	8	10	0
670	44	Frank Allchurch	Christ Ch. College Agent R. Webb Land Agent Evesham	Cottage		Sth Littleton			20	5	10	0	4	7	6
671		Charles Jones	Christ Ch. College Agent R. Webb Land Agent Evesham	Cottage		Sth Littleton			10	4	10	0	3	12	6
672	45	Robt. H. Careless	Mary Heming Bakehouse North Littleton	Agr. Land		Hill Ground	2	1	7	3	17	6	3	14	0
673	46	Henry Harrison	Mary Heming Bakehouse North Littleton	Agr. Land		Hill Ground	2	1	8	3	17	6	3	14	0

								imate xtent		Gros	s anr alue		Rate	able va	alue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	s	d
674	47	Colin Allchurch	Mary Heming Bakehouse North Littleton	Agr. Land		Hill Ground	2	1	7	3	17	6	3	14	0
675	48	Richard Heming	Mary Heming Bakehouse North Littleton	Agr. Land		Hill Ground	2	1	8	3	17	6	3	14	0
676	49	Martin Stainforth	Mary Heming Bakehouse North Littleton	Agr. Land		Lower Field	3	1	10	7	11	3	7	4	0
677		Martin Stainforth	Mary Heming Bakehouse North Littleton	Agr. Land		Lower Field	2	0	26	5	0	0	4	15	0
678	50	Frank Warner	Mary Heming Bakehouse North Littleton	Agr. Land		Lower Field	2	3	12	6	10	0	6	4	0
679	51	Robt. H. Careless	Mary Heming Bakehouse North Littleton	Agr. Land		Lower Field	3	0	33	7	5	0	7	0	0
680	52	A. & C. Allchurch	Arthur & Colin Allchurch Hill View South Littleton	Agr. Land		The Hill	4	3	8	8	0	0	7	12	0
681		John Southwell	Arthur & Colin Allchurch Hill View South Littleton	Cottage		Greenhill Cottgs				8	5	0	7	0	0
682		Henry Thornton	Arthur & Colin Allchurch Hill View South Littleton	Cottage		Greenhill Cottgs				8	5	0	7	0	0
683		Geo. W. Howley	Arthur & Colin Allchurch Hill View South Littleton	Cottage		Greenhill Cottgs				8	5	0	7	0	0
684		Giles Careless	Arthur & Colin Allchurch Hill View South Littleton	Cottage		Greenhill Cottgs				8	5	0	7	0	0

								imate xtent		Gros	s ann	ual	Rate	able va	alue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	S	d
685		Ernest Smith	Arthur & Colin Allchurch Hill View South Littleton	Cottage		Greenhill Cottgs				8	5	0	7	0	0
686		Colin Allchurch	Arthur & Colin Allchurch Hill View South Littleton	Cottage		Greenhill Cottgs				8	5	0	7	0	0
687	53	Arthur Allchurch	Arthur & Colin Allchurch Hill View South Littleton	House		Hill View				14	0	0	11	17	6
688	54	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	House		The Vicarage	1	2	10	35	0	0	29	15	0
689	55	Walter J. Emms	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Orchard		Parsons Orchd	2	2	19	18	0	0	17	2	0
690	56	David Hobbins	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	R. Room Garden		Sth Littleton			29	2	5	0	2	2	6
691	57	Void	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Reading Room		Sth Littleton				1	0	0		17	0
692		-	Vicar and Churchwardens	Churchyard		Sth Littleton	1	0	11						
693	58	John Curnock	John James Smith Fish & Anchor Littleton Evesham	Cottage		Sth Littleton			10	8	0	0	6	15	0
694		John W. A. Emms	John James Smith Fish & Anchor Littleton Evesham	Cottage		Sth Littleton			10	6	0	0	4	16	0
695		Geo. H. Rose	John James Smith Fish & Anchor Littleton Evesham	Cottage		Sth Littleton			10	4	10	0	3	12	6
696		Geo. H. Rose	John James Smith Fish & Anchor Littleton Evesham	Cottage		Sth Littleton			10	4	10	0	3	12	6

								imate xtent		Gros	s ann	ual	Rate	able va	alue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	s	d
697		George Knight junr	John James Smith Fish & Anchor Littleton Evesham	Cottage		Sth Littleton			10	4	10	0	3	12	6
698		Sarah Jones	John James Smith Fish & Anchor Littleton Evesham	Cottage		Sth Littleton			10	4	10	0	3	12	6
699		Frederick Emms	John James Smith Fish & Anchor Littleton Evesham	Cottage		Sth Littleton			10	3	15	0	3	2	0
700		James Stephens	John James Smith Fish & Anchor Littleton Evesham	Cottage		Sth Littleton			10	2	12	0	2	2	6
701		Daniel Rose	John James Smith Fish & Anchor Littleton Evesham	Cottage		Sth Littleton			10	4	10	0	3	12	6
702		Geo. H. Rose	John James Smith Fish & Anchor Littleton Evesham	Shop & Bakehouse		Sth Littleton				8	0	0	6	15	0
703	59	Maurice Harrison	Maurice Harrison South Littleton	Agr. Land		Twenty Pound Piece	5	0	24	7	15	0	7	7	6
704		Maurice Harrison	Maurice Harrison South Littleton	House		Twenty Pound Piece				9	0	0	7	12	6
705	60	John Morris	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne Cowarne Court Nr. Ledbury	House		Manor Farm				15	0	0	12	15	0
706		John Morris	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne Cowarne Court Nr. Ledbury	Buildings		Manor Farm				11	0	0	9	7	0
707		John Morris	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne Cowarne Court Nr. Ledbury	Agr. Land		Manor Farm	110	3	4	58	0	0	55	2	0

								imate xtent		Gros	s ann alue	ual	Rate	able va	ılue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	S	d
708		John Morris	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne Cowarne Court Nr. Ledbury	Agr. Land		Penn Gd	10	0	0	20	0	0	19	0	0
709	61	Void	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne Cowarne Court Nr. Ledbury	S. Rights		Manor Farm				6	12	0	6	5	0
710	62	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne Cowarne Court Nr. Ledbury	Osier Aits		River Avon					7	6		7	6
711	63	William Careless	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne Cowarne Court Nr. Ledbury	Buildings		New Barn				6	0	0	5	2	0
712	63	William Careless	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne Cowarne Court Nr. Ledbury	Agr. Land		New Barn	55	2	1	39	8	0	37	8	0
713	64	Thomas Bubb	Worcester C. Council	Agr. Land		Twenty Pound Piece	5	0	25	7	15	0	7	7	6
714	65	Thomas Bubb	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Orchard		Mumford's Orchd		2	35	7	15	0	7	7	6
715		Albert Harrison	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Twenty Pound Piece	1	1	32	2	5	0	2	3	0
716		John Witts	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Twenty Pound Piece	1	2	33	3	7	6	3	4	0
717		Edwin Emms	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Pixley Gd	4	2	17	7	0	0	6	13	0
718		Fredk. Averill	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Barn Gd	2	3	20	3	15	0	3	12	0
719		John Rose	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Barn Gd	1	0	0	1	6	0	1	5	0
720		Daniel Rose	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Barn Gd	1	0	12	1	7	6	1	6	0
721		Geo. Mumford	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Barn Gd	1	1	15	1	15	0	1	13	0
722	66	Geo. Mumford	George Mumford South Littleton	Agr. Land		Twenty Pound Piece	1	1	10	2	5	0	2	3	0
723		Geo. Mumford	George Mumford South Littleton	Agr. Land		The Slingett	2	0	0	2	5	0	2	3	0

								imate xtent		Gros	s ann alue	ual	Rate	able va	alue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	S	d
724	67	Henry Harrison	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Snuff's Gd	2	0	3	2	12	6	2	10	0
725		John Curnock	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Snuff's Gd	1	3	21	2	10	0	2	7	6
726		John Curnock	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Snuff's Gd		3	21	1	4	0	1	3	0
727		Saml. Gould	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Snuff's Gd	1	1	0	1	13	6	1	12	0
728		John Curnock	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Snuff's Gd	2	0	1	2	12	0	2	10	0
729		Fredk. Averill	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Coley's Gd	1	1	13	2	2	6	2	0	0
730		John W. A. Emms	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Coley's Gd	1	1	2	2	2	6	2	0	0
731		Geo. Mumford	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Coley's Gd	1	2	0	2	7	6	2	5	0
732		Wilson Rose	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Coley's Gd	1	0	24	1	17	6	1	16	0
733	67	William Gregg	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Coley's Gd	1	0	12	1	17	6	1	16	0
734		William Gregg	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Agr. Land		Coley's Gd		2	37	1	12	6	1	11	0
735	68	George Emms	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne	Pasture		Snuff's Meadow	8	3	31	9	10	0	9	1	0
736		Waste land roads etc	Lieut. Col. R. Bourne				3	2	0						
737	69	Albert Emms	Lady Northwick	Agr. Land		Heming's Gd	4	0	10	6	4	0	5	18	0
738		Chas. Jones & H. Tombs	Lady Northwick	Agr. Land		Heming's Gd	4	0	10	6	4	0	5	18	0
739		Benj Wheeler	Lady Northwick	Agr. Land		Solomon Stile	5	0	29	6	15	0	6	8	6
740		Geo. H. Rose	Lady Northwick	Agr. Land		Upper Marbrook		3	31	1	6	3	1	5	0
741		Geo. H. Rose	Lady Northwick	Agr. Land		Upper Marbrook	1	1	33	1	16	0	1	14	6
742		Geo. H. Rose	Lady Northwick	Agr. Land		Upper Marbrook		1	34		12	6		12	0
743		Geo. H. Rose	Lady Northwick	Agr. Land		Upper Marbrook		1	34		12	6		12	0
744		William Rose	Lady Northwick	Agr. Land		Upper Marbrook	1	0	1	1	6	0	1	4	0
745		Geo. H. Rose	Lady Northwick	Agr. Land		Upper Marbrook	1	2	16	2	2	6	2	0	0
746		Geo. H. Rose	Lady Northwick	Agr. Land		Upper Marbrook	2	0	0	1	0	0		19	0
747		Jane Norledge	Lady Northwick	Agr. Land		Lower Marbrook	3	1	32	4	7	6	4	3	6
748		R. Ralph Smith	Lady Northwick	Agr. Land		Lower Marbrook	3	2	22	4	15	0	4	10	0

								imate xtent		Gros	s ann alue	ual	Rate	able va	alue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	S	d
749	70	Exors of J. E. Wheeler	Lady Northwick	Pasture		Taylor's Close	4	1	0	8	0	0	7	12	0
750	71	Walford Munyard	Matthew H. Munyard Westcombe Park Blackheath London	House		Shinehill Farm				10	0	0	8	10	0
751		Matthew H. Munyard	Matthew H. Munyard Westcombe Park Blackheath London	Buildings		Shinehill Farm				8	0	0	6	16	0
752		Matthew H. Munyard	Matthew H. Munyard Westcombe Park Blackheath London	Agr. Land		Shinehill Farm	142	3	12	49	10	0	47	0	0
753	71	Matthew H. Munyard	Matthew H. Munyard	S. Rights		Shinehill Farm				3	10	0	3	1	0
754		Samuel Sandford	Matthew H. Munyard	Cottage		Shinehill Farm				4	0	0	3	5	0
755		Francis Jelfs	Matthew H. Munyard	Cottage		Shinehill Farm				4	0	0	3	5	0
756	72	Christ Ch. College	Christ Ch. College	Corn Tithes		South Littleton				85	0	0	80	15	0
757	73	Philip R. Smith	G. W. Railway Company	Railway Land		South Littleton	2	0	32	456	0	0	320	0	0
758	74	Thomas Adkins	Thomas Adkins Long Hyde, Nr. Evesham	House		Long Hyde				70	0	0	59	10	0
759		Thomas Adkins	Thomas Adkins Long Hyde, Nr. Evesham	Orchard		Long Hyde	2	0	0	6	0	0	5	14	0
760		Francis Wm. Daffurn	Thomas Adkins Long Hyde, Nr. Evesham	Cottage		Long Hyde				4	0	0	3	5	0
761	75	Charles Emms	Thomas Adkins Long Hyde, Nr. Evesham	Pasture		Green Field	7	0	23	17	10	0	16	13	0
762		Charles Emms	Christ Ch. College	House		Hyde Farm				14	0	0	11	17	6
763		Charles Emms	Christ Ch. College	Buildings		Hyde Farm				8	0	0	6	16	0
764		Charles Emms	Christ Ch. College	Agr. Land		Hyde Farm	28	0	0	43	0	0	40	17	0
765	76	Samuel Bickerstaff	Christ Ch. College	Cottage		Newtown				6	0	0	4	15	0
766		Henry Harrison	Christ Ch. College	Cottage		Newtown				6	0	0	4	15	0

								imate xtent		Gros	s ann alue	ual	Rate	able va	alue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	s	d
7678	77	George Daniels S.	Christ Ch. College	Cottage		Newtown				6	0	0	4	15	0
768 ⁹	78	Void	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		3	25	1	1	0	1	0	0
769		Void	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		1	32		10	6		10	6
770		Void	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		1	38		11	6		11	6
771		Void	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		3	32	1	2	0	1	1	0
772		Void	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		1	35		10	6		10	6
773	79	John Rose	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		2	5		12	0		12	0
774		John Rose	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		1	36		11	6		11	0
775	80	Geo. H. Rose	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		3	38	1	3	0	1	2	0
776		Geo. H. Rose	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		3	8		18	6		17	6
777		Geo. H. Rose	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome	1	0	13	1	5	0	1	4	0
778	81	Charles Rose	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		3	8		18	6		17	6
779		Charles Rose	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome	1	0	29	1	7	6	1	6	0
780	82	Frank Allchurch	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome	1	0	18	1	5	6	1	4	0
781	83	Solomon Mumford	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		2	24		15	6		14	6
782		Solomon Mumford	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome	1	2	29	2	0	0	1	18	0
783	84	R. Ralph Smith	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		2	9		13	6		12	6
784		R. Ralph Smith	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome			31		4	6		4	6
785		R. Ralph Smith	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		2	6		12	6		12	6
786	85	Albert Harrison	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		3	24	1	1	6	1	0	0
787		Albert Harrison	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		2	0		12	0		12	0
788		Albert Harrison	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome			33		5	0		5	0

⁻

⁸ George Daniels of South Littleton had a grandson Frederick George Daniels (who may have been known as George) and it is possible that the 'S.' stands for Senior. TNA: RG14/17709.

⁹ In the 1840 Tithe Award for the parish of South Littleton, piece number 111 was known as Tiresome Field extending to 18 acres and 3 roods. WAAS: s760/546 BA 1572. The sum of the acreages of Assessment Numbers 768 to 792 was 17 acres 3 roods and 6 perches.

								imate xtent		Gros	s ann alue	ual	Rate	able va	ılue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	S	d
789		Albert Harrison	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		1	30		10	6		10	0
790		Albert Harrison	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome			34		5	0		5	0
791	86	Void	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		3	36	1	2	6	1	1	0
792		Void	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Tiresome		2	33		16	6		16	0
793	87	Charles Wheeler	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		The Slingett	3	3	16	4	0	0	3	16	0
794	88	Eli Rose	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Butler's Gd		3	16	1	3	6	1	2	6
795	89	John Rose	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Butler's Gd	1	1	28	2	0	0	1	18	0
796		John Rose	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Butler's Gd	1	0	36	1	15	0	1	13	0
797	90	Fredk. Averill	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Butler's Gd	1	0	37	1	15	0	1	13	0
798	91	Eli Bubb	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Butler's Gd	1	3	17	2	12	6	2	10	0
799	92	Richard Kilby	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Butler's Gd	1	0	28	1	15	0	1	13	0
800	93	David Tombs	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Butler's Gd	2	0	32	3	5	0	3	2	0
801	94	Albert Harrison	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Seed Piece	1	0	17	1	10	6	1	9	0
802	95	Jesse Sutton	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Seed Piece	1	0	34	1	15	0	1	13	0
803		Jesse Sutton	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Seed Piece	1	1	10	1	17	6	1	15	6
804	96	William Cooke	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Seed Piece		3	12	1	3	6	1	2	6
805	97	Jesse Sutton	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Seed Piece		2	32	1	0	0		19	0
806		Jesse Sutton	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Seed Piece		1	35		13	6		13	6
807		Jesse Sutton	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Seed Piece	1	0	28	1	12	6	1	11	0
808		Jesse Sutton	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Cottage		Holborn			38	4	10	0	3	12	6
809		Jesse Sutton	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		1	36		11	6		11	6
810		Jesse Sutton	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd	1	0	16	1	5	6	1	4	0
811		Jesse Sutton	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		2	30		16	6		16	0
812	98	William Cooke	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		2	8		12	6		12	0
813	99	Frank Allchurch	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		2	27		15	6		15	0
814	100	Thos. Hartwell	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		2	25		15	6		15	0

								imate xtent		Gros	s ann alue	ual	Rate	able va	alue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	s	d
815	101	Charles Shorey	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		1	30		10	6		10	0
816		Charles Shorey	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		2	29		15	6		15	0
817		Charles Shorey	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		2	6		12	6		12	0
818		Charles Shorey	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		2	30		15	6		15	0
819	102	Albert Emms	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		2	15		13	6		13	0
820		Albert Emms	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		1	14		7	6		7	6
821	103	Fredk. Taylor	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		1	17		9	0		9	0
822	104	Geo. Quiney	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		1	24		10	0		10	0
823	105	Void	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		3	16	1	0	0		19	0
824		Void	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		1	37		7	6		7	6
825		Void	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		House Gd		2	12		10	6		10	0
826	106	Edwin White	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Holborn Hill		2	34		13	6		13	0
827	107	Allen Grey	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Holborn Hill		2	4		10	0		10	0
828		Allen Grey	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Holborn Hill		2	23		11	0		11	0
829		Allen Grey	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Holborn Hill		2	36		13	6		12	0
830		Allen Grey	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Holborn Hill		1	16		6	6		6	6
831	108	Jesse Sutton	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Pasture		Sugar Meadow	4	0	0	5	0	0	4	15	0
832	109	Geo. Quiney	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Holborn Hill		1	18		6	6		6	6
833	110	Edwin White	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Holborn Hill		2	32		13	6		12	6
834	111	Herbert Coldicott	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Holborn Hill	1	0	27	1	2	6	1	1	6
835		Herbert Coldicott	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Holborn Hill		2	30		12	6		12	0
836		Herbert Coldicott	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Holborn Hill		1	12		5	6		5	6
837		Herbert Coldicott	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Holborn Hill		1	25		7	6		7	6
838	112	Void	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Holborn Hill		2	16		11	6		11	6
839		Void	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Holborn Hill		2	28		12	6		12	0
840		Void	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Holborn Hill		2	22		12	0		12	0

								imate xtent		Gros	s ann alue	ual	Rate	able va	alue
				1	1					1	1	_			
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	S	d
841	113	Wm Dowler	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Pasture		Green Hill	6	2	0	6	0	0	5	14	0
842	114	Charles Shorey	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Churchpiece		3	8	1	18	6	1	17	0
843		Charles Shorey	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Churchpiece		2	5		12	6		12	0
844	115	Charles Taylor	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Churchpiece		2	7		12	6		12	0
845	116	Fredk. Smith	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Churchpiece		2	25		15	6		15	0
846		Fredk. Smith	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Churchpiece		2	23		15	6		15	0
847		Fredk. Smith	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Churchpiece		2	21		15	0		15	0
848	117	Thomas Wilkes	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Churchpiece		3	0		17	0		16	0
849	118	Fredk. Smith	Revd F. G. E. Ashworth	Agr. Land		Churchpiece		2	24		15	0		15	0
850	119	Fredk. Averill	Churchwardens Per Mr. John Morris Manor Farm South Littleton	Agr. Land		Paddock		1	0	1	1	6	1	0	0
851	120	Albert Harrison	Churchwardens Per Mr. John Morris Manor Farm South Littleton	Agr. Land		Ch: Piece	1	0	33	1	14	6	1	13	0
852	121	Henry Wilkes	Churchwardens	Agr. Land		Ch: Piece	1	0	18	1	11	6	1	10	0
853		Henry Wilkes	Churchwardens	Agr. Land		Ch: Piece	1	1	19	1	17	6	1	15	6
854		Henry Wilkes	Churchwardens	Agr. Land		Ch: Piece		2	38	1	0	0		19	0
855		Henry Wilkes	Churchwardens	Agr. Land		Ch: Piece	1	3	17	2	13	6	2	11	0
856	122	George Oldacre	George Oldacre South Littleton	Agr. Land		Old Hop Yard	1	2	23	3	10	0	3	6	6
857	123	Thomas Bubb	Thomas Bubb Sth Littleton	Agr. Land		Old Hop Yard	1	2	23	3	10	0	3	6	6
858		Thomas Bubb	Thomas Bubb Sth Littleton	House		Bethany Bdls		1	0	8	0	0	6	16	0
859	124	Daniel H. Fowler	Danl. H. Fowler South Littleton	Cottage		Bethany Bdls			20	7	0	0	5	12	6
860	125	Richd Kilby	Richd Kilby South Littleton	Cottage		Bethany Bdls			20	7	0	0	5	12	6

								imat xtent		Gros	s anr alue	ual	Rate	able va	ılue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	S	d
861	126	Joshua Baylis	Maurice Harrison South Littleton	Cottage		Bethany Bdls		1	0	8	0	0	6	16	0
862	127	Society of Friends	Society of Friends	Mission Room		Bethany Bdls			20	12	0	0	10	5	0
863	128	James Bubb	Wm H. Bubb South Littleton	Cottage		Bethany Bdls			10	7	0	0	5	12	6
864	129	Harriett Bubb	Harriett Bubb South Littleton	Cottage		Bethany Bdls			10	7	0	0	5	12	6
865	130	William H. Bubb	Thomas Bubb South Littleton	Cottage		Bethany Bdls				7	0	0	5	12	6
866	131	Geo. Mumford	Bidford Coopr. Society	Cottage		Bethany Bdls			10	7	0	0	5	12	6
867	132	Ralph Oldacre	Bidford Coopr. Society	Cottage		Bethany Bdls			10	7	0	0	5	12	6
868	133	Saml Bayliss	Bidford Coopr. Society	Cottage		Bethany Bdls			20	7	0	0	5	12	6
869	134	Thomas Salisbury	Bidford Coopr. Society	Cottage		Bethany Bdls			20	7	0	0	5	12	6
870	135	Fredk. Averill	Fanny Averill South Littleton	Cottage		Bethany Bdls			20	7	0	0	5	12	6
871	136	Albert Harrison	Bidford Coopr. Society	Agr. Land		Twenty Pound Piece		3	17	1	5	0	1	4	0
872		Albert Harrison	Bidford Coopr. Society	Cottage		Twenty Pound Piece				8	0	0	6	16	0
873	137	Benjm Bayliss	Bidford Coopr. Society	Cottage		Bethany Bdls				7	0	0	5	12	6
874	138	Frank Bickerstaff	Bidford Coopr. Society	Cottage		Shinehill Lane			16	8	0	0	6	16	0
875	139	Oliver Bickerstaff	Bidford Coopr. Society	Cottage		Shinehill Lane			16	8	0	0	6	16	0
876	140	Wm. Geo. Beard	Wm. Geo. Beard South Littleton	Cottage		Shinehill Lane			16	9	0	0	7	12	6
877	141	Wilson Allchurch	Owen Cook North Littleton	Cottage		Shinehill Lane			14	8	0	0	6	16	0
878	142	Mark Brotheridge	Owen Cook North Littleton	Cottage		Shinehill Lane			14	8	0	0	6	16	0
879	143	Albert Emms	Bidford Coopr. Society	Cottage		Shinehill Lane			16	9	0	0	7	12	6

								imate xtent		Gros v	s ann alue	ual	Rate	able va	ılue
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	P	£	S	d	£	S	d
880	144	Geo. H. Richardson	Bidford Coopr. Society	Cottage		Shinehill Lane			16	9	0	0	7	12	6
881	145	William Cooke	Bidford Coopr. Society	Cottage		Shinehill Lane			16	9	0	0	7	12	6
882	146	Geo. Oldacre	Bidford Coopr. Society	Cottage		Shinehill Lane			14	5	0	0	4	0	0
883	147	Eli Rose	Bidford Coopr. Society	Cottage		Shinehill Lane			24	8	0	0	6	16	0
884	148	William Sadler	Bidford Coopr. Society	Cottage		Shinehill Lane			24	6	0	0	5	0	0
885		William Sadler	Bidford Coopr. Society	Land		Shinehill Lane			33		6	0		6	0
886	149	Percival Wm. Holmes	P. W. Holmes South Littleton	Cottage		Shinehill Lane			32	9	0	0	7	12	6
887	150	Thomas Bubb	Bidford Coopr. Society	Land		Little Gd	1	2	0	4	0	0	3	16	0
888	151	Void	Bidford Coopr, Society	Land		Little Gd		1	0		14	0		14	0
888A		Wilson D. Allchurch	Worcester C. C	House		Prospect Ho.				9	0	0	7	12	6
1224^{10}		Careless Thos.	Careless Thomas	Land		Sth Littleton									
1226				Church & Churchyard		St Littleton									
123011			Owen Cook	Building Plot		Sheenhill Lane									
123112			Bidford Coop Society	Building Plot		Sheenhill Lane									
1232			Mission Room Trustees	Mission Room		Sheenhill Lane									
1236		R. Smith	J. Heber Smith	Hse & gdn.		Main St.									7

Note added: Included in Return No. 619 Cleeve Prior [See above].
 Note added: (Included in No. 877).
 Note added: (Included in No. 888).

Appendix 2. Index of Owners

Churchwardens 850-855

Emms, Charles 623-625

Driver, Wm. B. 612-613, 616

Adkins, Thomas 758-761 Harrison, Maurice 703-704, 861

Allchurch, Arthur & Colin 680-687 Heming, Mary 672-679

Allchurch, Colin see Allchurch, Arthur & Colin Holmes, P. W. 886

Ashworth, Rev. F. G. E. 688-691, 768-849 Jelfs, Silas Elick 637

Kilby, Richd. 860 Averill, Fanny 870

Beard, Wm. Geo. 876 Mission Room Trustees 1232

Bidford Co-operative Society 664-668, 866-869, Mumford, George 722-723 871-875, 879-885, 887-888, 1231

Mumford, Solomon 622 Bourne, Lieut. Col. R. 705-712, 714-721, 724-

Munyard, Matthew H. 750-755 736

Northwick, Lady 607-611, 737-749 Bubb, Harriett 864

Not stated 1226 Bubb, Thomas 621, 857-858, 865

Oldacre, George 856 Bubb, Wm. H. 863

Sheppard, Mary A. 587-594 Careless, Thomas 631-634, 1224

Sladden & Collier Ltd. 596 Careless, William 617, 620

Smith, J. Heber 1236 Chown, Herbert 603-604

Smith, John James 693-702 Christ Church College 597-602, 669-671, 756,

762-767 Smith, R. Walton 605-606

Society of Friends 862

Cook, Owen 877-878, 1230 United Bank Ltd. 614-615, 618-619

Vicar and Churchwardens 692

Emms, Robt. Sen. 580-582 Wheeler, Benim 576-579

Emms, Walter J. 626-630 Wheeler, Edith see Wheeler, Sarah & Edith

Vickridge, Jane 575

Fowler, Danl. H. 859 Wheeler, Percy 572-574

Great Western Railway Company 757 Wheeler, Sarah & Edith 595

Harris, Frank 583-585 Worcestershire County Council 635-636, 638-

663, 713, 888A Harris, Ralph Sen. 586

Appendix 3. Index of Occupiers

Adkins, Thomas 758-759	Bubb, William H. 865	Emms, John W. A. 694, 730
Allchurch, A. & C. 680	Careless, Giles 684	Emms, Walter J. 626-627,
Allchurch, Arthur 687	Careless, Robt. H. 596, 605-	662-663, 689
Allchurch, C. see Allchurch,	606, 672, 679	Emms. Robt. Sen. 582
A. & C.	Careless, Thomas 634, 1224	Fowler, Daniel H. 859
Allchurch, Colin 674, 686	Careless, William 612-619, 711-712	Gibbs, Major 632
Allchurch, Frank 649, 670,		Gould, Emma 589
780, 813	Chown, Herbert 603-604	Gould, Saml. 727
Allchurch, Wilson 877	Christ Church College 756	Gregg, William 733-734
Allchurch, Wilson D. 635, 651, 888A	Coldicott, Henry 602	Grey, Allen 827-830
Ashwin, Bellwood 597-600	Coldicott, Herbert 834-837	Harris, Ralph Jun. 584-586
	Cook, Fredk. 639-640	Harrison, Albert 715, 786-
Ashworth, Rev. F. G. E. 688	Cook, Henry 588	790, 801, 851, 871-872
Averill, Fredk. 718, 729, 797, 850, 870	Cook, John 638	Harrison, Fanny 579
Baylis, Joshua 861	Cook, Owen 642	Harrison, Frederick 577
Bayliss, Benjm. 873	Cooke, William 804, 812, 881	Harrison, Henry 673, 724, 766
Bayliss, Saml. 868	Curnock, John 693, 725-	Harrison, Maurice 703-704
Beard, Wm. Geo. 876	726, 728	Hartwell, Thos. 814
Bickerstaff, Frank 874	Daffurn, Francis Wm. 760	Heming, Richard 675
Bickerstaff, Oliver 875	Daniels, George S[en]. 767	Hobbins, David 628, 690
Bickerstaff, Samuel 765	Dowler, Wm. 841	
Bidford Co-operative	Dudfield, Harry 607-610	Holmes, Percival W. 636
Society 668	Edwards, Harry 643-644	Holmes, Percival Wm. 886
Bourne, Lieut. Col. R. 710	Emms, Albert 737, 819-820,	Howley, Algernon 583
Brotheridge, Mark 878	879	Howley, Geo. W. 683
Bubb, Eli 798	Emms, Charles 761-764	Jelfs, Francis 755
Bubb, Frederick 641, 666	Emms, Edwin 717	Jelfs, Silas Elick 637
Bubb, Harriett 864	Emms, Frederick 699	Jones, Charles 671
Bubb, James 863	Emms, George 592, 594, 735	Jones, Chas. & H. Tombs 738
Bubb, Thomas 621, 713-714, 857-858, 887	Emms, George H. 650, 652-	Jones, Rebecca 624
,	653, 659	Jones, Sarah 698

Kilby, Hubert A. 645	Rose, Charles 575, 778-779	Society of Friends 862
Kilby, Richard 799, 860	Rose, Daniel 701, 720	Southwell, John 681
Knight, George Jun. 697	Rose, Eli 794, 883	Stainforth, Martin 647, 676-
Knight, James 630	Rose, Geo. H. 580, 646, 695-696, 702, 740-743, 745- 746, 775-777	677
Morris, John 705-708		Stephens, James 700
Mumford, George 593, 721-723, 731, 866	Rose, Jim 591	Sutton, Jesse 802-803, 805-811, 831
Mumford, Harry 590	Rose, John 664, 719, 773-774, 795-796	Taylor, Charles 844
Mumford, Solomon 622,	Rose, John Jun. 633	Taylor, Fredk. 821
781-782		Taylor, Harry 578
Mumford, William 620	Rose, William 581, 744	Thornton, Henry 682
Munyard, Matthew H. 751-	Rose, Wilson 732	Tombs, David 800
753	Sadler, William 884-885	Tombs, H. see Jones, Chas.
Munyard, Walford 750	Salisbury, Solomon 625	& H. Tombs
Neville, James 601	Salisbury, Thomas 869	Turley, William D. 669
Norledge, George 623	Sandford, Samuel 754	Void 611, 691, 709, 768-
Norledge, Jane 665, 667, 747	Shammon, George 648, 654, 660	772, 791-792, 823-825, 838- 840, 888
Norledge, William 629	Sheppard, Mary A. 587	Warner, Frank 678
Not stated 692, 1226, 1230-	•	Waste, land, roads etc. 736
1232		Wheeler, Benj. 739
Oldacre, George 856, 882	Smith, Ernest 685	Wheeler, Charles 793
Oldacre, Ralph 867	Smith, Fredk. 845-847, 849	Wheeler, J. E., Exors of 749
Quiney, Geo. 822, 832	Smith, Philip R. 757	Wheeler, Percy 572-573
Randall, Henry 595	Smith, R. 1236	White, Edwin 826, 833
Read, Francis 655-658, 661	Smith, R. Ralph 748, 783-	Wilkes, Henry 852-855
Read, Levi 574	85	Wilkes, Thomas 848
Richardson, Geo. H. 880	Smith, Robert R. 631	Witts, John 576, 716

Appendix 4. Index of Places

Abel's Orchard 618	Home Orchard 616	Prospect House 888A
Barn Ground 718-721	House Ground 809-825	River Avon 710
Bethany Buildings 858-870, 873	Hyde Farm 762-764	Seed Piece 801-807
	King Edward VII Inn 596	Sheenhill Lane 1230-1232
Blackpool 654-663	Langton's 573	Shinehill Farm 750-755
Bowery 615	Little Ground 887-888	Shinehill Lane 583-585, 593, 874-886
Brown's Orchard 617	Long Hyde 758-760	
Butler's Ground 794-800	Lower Field 676-679	Slingett, The 723, 793
Church Piece 842-849, 851-855	Lower Marbrook 747-748	Snuff's Ground 724-728
Coley's Ground 729-734	Main Street 1236	Snuff's Meadow 735
Crow Croft 621	Manor Farm 705-707, 709	Solomon Stile 739
	Mumford's Orchard 714	South House 603-604
Dovehouse Close 605-606	New Barn 711-712	South Littleton 572, 574-
Flax Ground 586	New Piece 635-641	581, 587-592, 594-595, 612- 614, 620, 622-633, 664-668, 670-671, 690-702, 756-757,
Glencoe 634	Newtown 765-767	
Goodwins 619	Norval Farm 607-611	1224, 1226
Green Field 761		Sugar Meadow 831
Green Hill 841	Not stated 736	Taylor's Close 749
Greenhill Cottages 681-686	Old Hop Yard 856-857	Tiresome 768-792
Heming's Ground 737-738	Paddock 850	Twenty Pound Piece 703-
Hill Ground 672-675	Parsons Orchard 689	704, 713, 715-716, 722, 871-872 Upper Marbrook 740-746 Vicarage, The 688
Hill View 687	Pastures Farm 597-602	
Hill, The 642-653, 680	Penn Ground 708	
Holborn 808	Pixley Ground 717	
Holborn Hill 826-830, 832-840	Police Station 669	
	Post Office 582	

Appendix 5. References to other Land Valuation resources for South Littleton

TNA - The National Archives, Kew

WAAS – Worcestershire Archaeology and Archive Service, The Hive, Worcester

Forms 37

No Forms 37 retained for the parish of South Littleton.

Field Books

TNA: IR58/93374, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Field Books. Worcester. Cleeve Prior (North Littleton) Assessment No. 501-600 1910.

TNA: IR58/93375, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Field Books. Worcester. Cleeve Prior (South Littleton) Assessment No. 601-700, 1910.

TNA: IR58/93376, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Field Books. Worcester. Cleeve Prior (South Littleton) Assessment No. 701-800, 1910.

TNA: IR58/93377, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Field Books. Worcester. Cleeve Prior (South Littleton) Assessment No. 801-900, 1910.

TNA: IR58/93381, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Field Books. Worcester. Cleeve Prior (Offenham) Assessment No. 1201-1251, 1910.

Record Maps

TNA: IR129/3/909, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Record Sheet Plans. West Midland Region: Hereford and Worcester District. OS Sheet Reference: Worcestershire XLII 12, 1910.

TNA: IR129/3/920, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Record Sheet Plans. West Midland Region: Hereford and Worcester District. OS Sheet Reference: Worcestershire XLIII 9, 1910.

TNA: IR129/3/921, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Record Sheet Plans. West Midland Region: Hereford and Worcester District. OS Sheet Reference: Worcestershire XLIII 10, 1910.

TNA: IR129/3/924, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Record Sheet Plans. West Midland Region: Hereford and Worcester District. OS Sheet Reference: Worcestershire XLIII 13, 1910.

TNA: IR129/3/925, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Record Sheet Plans. West Midland Region: Hereford and Worcester District. OS Sheet Reference: Worcestershire XLIII 14, 1910.

Appendix 6. Data standardisations made for the parish of South Littleton.

In preparing the data for analysis, the following standardisations have been made:

- Where entries appear in either owner names or occupier names, which use abbreviations or the full name, the listings in Appendices 2 and 3 show the full name for all variations: for example, for cases with the same surname only, where *Thos* and *Thomas* appear, these are all recorded under *Thomas*; however, those entries with only the initial *T*. are not assumed to be *Thomas*;
- Using the above logic, then:
 - o Frederick and Fredk. are recorded as Frederick;
 - o Geo. and George are recorded as George;
 - o Richd. and Richard are recorded as Richard.
- Three variations of owner name *Worcester C. Council*, *Worcester C. C.* and *Worcester County Council* are shown in Appendix 1: the listing in Appendix 2 shows *Worcestershire County Council* for all variations;
- The owner name G. W. Railway Company has been standardised to Great Western Railway Company;
- Two variations of owner and occupier names *Christ Ch: College* and *Christ Church College* are shown in Appendix 1: the listings in Appendices 2 and 3 show *Christ Church College* for both variations;
- Two variations of owner and occupier names *Bidford Coopr. Society* and *Bidford Coop Society* are shown in Appendix 1: the listings in Appendices 2 and 3 show *Bidford Cooperative Society* for both variations;
- Two variations of situation *Churchpiece* and *Ch: Piece* are shown in Appendix 1: the listing in Appendix 4 shows *Church Piece* for both variations;
- Three variations of situation *Sth Littleton*, *South Littleton* and *St Littleton* are shown in Appendix 1: the listing in Appendix 4 shows *South Littleton* for all variations;
- The abbreviation *Cottgs* has been standardised to *Cottages*:
- The abbreviation *Ho.* has been standardised to *House*:
- The abbreviation *Orchd* has been standardised to *Orchard*;
- The abbreviation *Bdls* has been standardised to *Buildings*;
- The abbreviation *St* has been standardised to *Street*.